
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

February 23, 2023 

 

 

 
  



February 23, 2023, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
THURSDAY, February 23, 2023    

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO 
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                    Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO    
                                                                                                                                                 Annie Parker, CCOO 

                                                                       
Guests:    Mac McGrath, Project Manager, Bouten 

                                       Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction  
                                                                                             Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 

                                                                                                                       Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                                                                                                                                     Adam Trumbour, Senior Project Manager, NV5 
               

               
 

   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
        
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for January 26, 2023       
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers # 170530 through # 171085 dated 01-18-23 through 02.15.23 in the amount of 
             $6,674,692.70. Surplus Item Resolution # 1076: (3) Medical Beds, and (1) Pharmacy Balance. 
 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.    Medical Staff Report and Credentialing                Dr. Wenger 
               Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional 
 1.  Advancement from Provisional           

Jung “Joanne” Kim, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in Emergency Medicine effective March 1, 2023 through 
August 31, 2023. 



February 23, 2023, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
             2.  New Appointment 

   Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
Benjamin Passey, CRNA – Provisional/Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in Anesthesia 
effective March 1, 2023, through August 31, 2023. 

 
 

VI. SERVICES 
   A.   Replacement Project Update 
         1. Design-DOH, WSDOT                                                                                                                         bcDG, NV5, Bouten 
         2. City of Prosser-Development Agreement (Attachment F)                                                                      NV5 
             Action Requested-Development Agreement 
         3. Construction (Attachment C)                                                                                                                       Bouten 
         4. Schedule (Attachment D)                                                                                                                              Bouten 
         5. Budget (Attachment E)                                                                                                                                   NV5 
 
   B.   Capital Request- ERBE (Attachment K)                                                                                                             Merry 

                 Action Requested-ERBE at a cost not to exceed $26,214 
 
 
VII.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
        A.   Review Financial Reports for January 2023 (Attachment CC)                                                                  David  
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
    
        B.  PMH Foundation Board Member-Lori Gardner                                                                                               Shannon 
              Action Requested-Lori Gardner 
 
        C.  PMH Foundation Operating Agreement (Attachment DD)                                                                           Shannon 
              Action Requested-PMH Foundation Operating Agreement 
 
 
 
VIII. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
         A. Review and Approve 2023 PMH Incentive Compensation Program (Attachment X)                               Craig 
                Action Requested-2023 Incentive Compensation Program 
 
         B. International Association of Firefighters (IAFF)(Attachment S)                                                                    Bryon 
              Action Requested-IAFF Contract 
            
 
  IX. PATIENT LOYALTY 
         A. 2023 Patient Engagement Plan (Attachment BB)                                                                                            Merry 
              Action Requested-2023 Patient Engagement Plan 
                                                       
  X. QUALITY 

          A.  Review and Approve 2023 Board Action Plan (Attachment GG )                                                                 Craig 
                 Action Requested-2023 Board Action Plan   
 
          B.  Legislative and Political Updates      Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
          C.  CEO/Operations Report                               Craig  



February 23, 2023, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
 
   XI.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
             
            A. RCW 42.30.110 (l) To consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the     

       development, acquisition or implementation of state purchased health care services as provided in RCW  
                  41.05.26 
 
  XII.  RESUME REGULAR SESSION 
 
 XIII.  SERVICES 
            A. Patient Financial Services Update (Attachment MM) (Attachment NN)                                                      David                             
                 Action Requested-Patient Financial Services 
 
 
 XIV.   ADJOURN 



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2023 Strategic Plan 
and 2023 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2023 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2022 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2022 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

• Review PMH Wage scales 
 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Regulatory Agency Updates 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Schedule 

• Budget 
 

February  
QUALITY: 

• Approve 2023 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Approve 2023 Incentive 
Compensation Program 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Rural Health Governance 
Conference  

• Review 2023 Incentive Compensation 
Program 

• Review 2023 Employee Engagement 
Calendar 

 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update 

• Schedule 

• Budget 
 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2023 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2023 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2022 Audit Report 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2022 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Report and 2023 Plan 

• Review 2022 Infection Prevention 
Summary and 2023 Plan 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2023 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Business Plan for Specialty 
Clinic 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2022 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 
SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• Schedule 

• Budget 

• Regulatory Agency Updates 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2023 Community Benefits 
Plan 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• Schedule 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2022 Community Benefits 
Report and 2023 Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2022 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 
 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2022 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 
 
 

May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week Activities 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 

 Schedule 

 Budget 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2023 Q1 Utilization Review 

• Review 2022 CAH Annual Report 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

Review Medical Assistant Practice 
Council Progress 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

 
 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 

 Schedule 

 Budget 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review New Employee Orientation & 
Onboarding process 

• Attend Leadership Car Wash and BBQ 
Tailgate party 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 

 Schedule 

 Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review New Leader Onboarding 
process 

• Review Pre-employment screening 
program 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 

 Schedule 

 Budget 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 

• Conduct 2024 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 
for 2024 

• Review 403(b) promotion campaign 
efforts of 2023 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2024 Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2024 Strategic Plan; 
2024 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2024 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 • Replacement Facility Update 

 Schedule 

 Budget 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership & Exempt Wage 
scales for 2024 

• Review LDIs and status update on key 
Studer initiatives 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2024 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2024 Environment of 
Care Plan 

• Approve RHC Program 
 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2024 Strategic Plan; 2024 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2024 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2024 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2023 Environment of 
Care results and 2024 Plan. 

• Review RHC Program. 

 



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Strategic Plan Scorecard



                       2023 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2023 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2023 YTD 2022 2021

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <3.17% 2.76%            2.76% 3.17% 1.47%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <54 min 61            61            54 60

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <124 min 133            133          124 117

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >68.75% 66.67%            66.67% 68.75% N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <5.63% 5.41%            5.41% 5.63% 5.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >96.67% 100.00%            100.00% 96.67% 94.40%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.08% 0.00% 0.00% 0.08% 0%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.67% 16.67% 16.67% 21.67% 21.89%

Surgical Site Infection <0.03% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.19%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.28% 91.55%            91.55% 93.28% 93.50%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >93.82% 91.06%            91.06% 93.82% 94.70%

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (INDEX Report) >59.5 65            65            59.5 68.5

*Falls with Injury <2 0.00%            0.00% 2 3

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    January 24, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler-Teams 

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Adam Trumbour, Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 

• Paul Kramer, Project Director, 
NV5 

• Quinton Barrett, People Element 

• Mac McGrath, Project Manager, 
Bouten 

• Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
 

None. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  EMPLOYEE AND MEDICAL    
STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

A. Review 2022 Employee 
and Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey 
Results             
(Attachment L) &    
(Attachment P)   

 

Quinton Barrett, from People Element, 
and Bryon Dirkes presented the results of 
the 2022 Employee and Medical Staff 
Engagement Surveys.  
 
 

None. NONE. 

IV.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

    



    1. Design 
           
 

Adam, Kurt, and Craig provided the Board 
with updates regarding regulatory agency 
(DOH, USDA, City of Prosser) reviews; 
ongoing work with SVID to bury the 
existing overflow canal on hospital 
property; Washington DOT and the 
furniture fair. 
 
 

None. None. 

            2.  Construction/ 
     Schedule/Budget 
      (Attachment F) 

(Attachment G)                
      (Attachment H) 

 
 

Paul, Adam, and Mac provided: a 
construction, schedule, and Budget 
update for the project. 
 
 

None. None. 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the regular business meeting at 7:28 p.m.  The Board 
entered into Executive Session at 7:29 p.m. which was expected to last approximately 1 hour, with no action to be taken after the session. 

V. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

     A.   RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the  
                                                performance of a public employee.   
 

V. RESUME SESSION 

Open session resumed at 8:20 p.m. 

VI. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:21p.m. 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  January 26, 2023,                                          WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur-Teams 

• Susan Reams  

• Keith Sattler-Teams 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland  

• Brandon Bowden  

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Dr. Jose Santa-Cruz 
 

 

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  The meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:07 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Reams made a Motion to 
approve the December 15, 2022, Agenda.  
The Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
McPartland and passed with 5 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           December 15, 2022. 
       
 
 

None. Commissioner McPartland made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Reams          
and passed with 5 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #169603 through 
      #170529 dated 12.08.22 

through 01.17.23 in the       
amount of 
$10,754,384.21.  

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

                    1. New Appointment Dr. Santa-Cruz presented the following providers 
for New Appointment:   
 
Gary Thomas, ARNP – Provisional/Advanced 
Practice Clinician with requested privileges in 
Family Medicine effective February 1, 2023, 
through July 31, 2023. 
 

  Norman Hauk, PA-C – Provisional/Advance Practice 
Clinician with requested privileges in Family 
Medicine effective February 1, 2023, through July 
31, 2023. 
 

A Motion to approve the New Appointment 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

• Gary Thomas, ARNP 

• Norman Hauk, PA-C 
 

 

              1. Reappointment Dr. Santa-Cruz presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
      

                 Jessica Dingwall, MD – Reappointment to Locum 
Tenens staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic 
Radiology effective February 1, 2023, through 
January 31, 2025. 
 
Peter Park, ARNP - Reappointment to Advanced 
Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner McPartland.  
The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 

None. 



 

 

Family Medicine effective February 1, 2023, 
through January 31, 2025. 
 
Fareed Arif, MD – Reappointment to Consulting 
staff with requested privileges in Nephrology 
effective February 1, 2023, through January 31, 
2025. 
 
 
 

• Jessica Dingwall, MD 

• Peter Park, ARNP 

• Fareed Arif, MD 

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for December 
            2022  

(Attachment T) 
 

David Rollins presented the December 2022 
Financial Reports.  
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
December 2022, was made by 
Commissioner Reams, and seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

    B.  Review 2022 PMH Clinic 
Financials 

          (Attachment TT) 
 
 
 

David presented the 2022 PMH Clinic Financials.  
 

None. None. 

C.  Appoint New PMH 
Foundation Board 
Member- Belem Grey 

                 

The PMH Foundation Board recommended we 
appoint Belem Grey as a New Foundation Board 
Member. 

A Motion to approve the New PMH 
Foundation Board Member- Belem Grey was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner McPartland. The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

VII. EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT                                         DISCUSSION                                                                       ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

VII. EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 
         A. CPI Review 

(Attachment II)                                                                                                                                   
 

Craig presented the CPI Salary adjustments for staff 
totaling $1,159,710 to be implemented in the 1st 
full pay period in February. 
 

A Motion to approve CPI Adjustments as 
proposed was made by Commissioner 
Bowden and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 

None. 

VIII.  SERVICES                                                                      DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A.  Capital Request- ERCP 
Scopes  

Craig presented the Capital Request- ERCP Scopes 
at a cost not to exceed $140,000 as budgeted. 

A Motion to approve the Capital Request- 
ERCP Scopes at a cost not to exceed 

None. 



 

 

        (Attachment TTT)                                                                                            
 
 

 $140,000 was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 
0 opposed. 
 

IX. QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                       ACTION                                           FOLLOW-UP 

  A.  Review 2022 Quality 
Assurance Program Plans 
(Attachment AA)                      

        
 

Kristi reviewed the 2022 Quality Assurance 
Program Plan and presented the 2023 Quality 
Assurance Program Plan. 

A Motion to approve the 2023 Quality 
Assurance Program Plan was made by 
Commissioner Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 
 

None. 

B.  Review 2022 Risk 
Management Program Plans 

      (Attachment BB)    
 

Kristi reviewed the 2022 Risk Management 
Program Plan and presented the 2023 Risk 
Management Program Plan.  
 

A Motion to approve the 2023 Risk 
Management Program Plan was made by 
Commissioner Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 
 

 

C.  Board Officers 
      (Attachment GG) 

(Attachment HH) 
                                                       

 

 Board Officers for 2022 were reviewed: Steve 
Kenny, PH.D., President; Keith Sattler, Vice 
President; and Glenn Bestebreur, Secretary. All 
current officers indicated their willingness to 
continue in their current roles.  

A Motion to approve the following Board 
Officers for 2023: Steve Kenny, PhD-
President; Keith Sattler-Vice President; and 
Glenn Bestebreur was made by 
Commissioner Bowden and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

D.  Board Committees and 
Membership (Attachment 
HH) 

 

Craig presented the 2022 Board Committee 
Structure and membership.                                                                  

A Motion to approve the 2023 Committee 
Structure and membership was made by 
Commissioner Dietrich and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

E. Legislative and Political        
Updates 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief Legislative and 
Political Update. 
 

None. None. 



 

 

 

F.    CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the January 
Board Packet. 

None. None. 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the regular business meeting at 7:10 p.m.  The Board entered into 
Executive Session at 7:12 p.m. which was expected to last approximately 1 hour. 

X.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 

       A.   RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the  
                   performance of a public employee.   

XI.  RESUME SESSION 

Open Session resumed at 8:15 
p.m. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

XII.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   FEBRUARY 15, 2023                                              VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• Dr. D. Carl 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. D. Weaver 

• Dr. B. Sollers 
 

• K. Mellema, CQO/CCO 

• M. Fuller, CNO/COO 

• Dr. S. Hashmi 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 0700 am. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES Minutes for January 2023 were reviewed and approved by the 
Committee. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

2022 SPH Annual 
Assessment and 2023 SPH 
Program Plan 

M. Fuller reported the SPH 2022 Annual Program Risk Assessment 
and 2023 SPH Goals.  This is a State of WA RCW that a Safe Patient 
Handling Committee be established.  At least half of the members 
are frontline nonmanagerial employees who provide direct patient 
care.   
 
There were ten patient handling injuries in 2022.  Four injuries 
occurred while caring for a known combative patient.   
 
We want to ensure that we deliver consistent training on lifting 
equipment.  We will be creating videos with our staff with our 
equipment. 

Motion was approved 
and seconded.  
Approved. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

EOC/Safety Committee 
Update 

K. Mellema shared the Safety & EOC Committee meeting minutes 
for January.  All past due rounds have been given a clean slate and 
will start fresh this year.  There was on safety recall on the 2016 
F0350 Ford Truck/Ambulance.  Two fire drills conducted on 
11/30/2022 and again 12/22/2022.  There were two falls at the 
Grandview Clinic with one workers compensation pending.  The 
Physical Therapy clinic has a piece of equipment with a seat that is 
showing signs of wear and cracking.  Education for leaders will be 
provided on the colored stickers used by BIOMED.  Finally, Eric G. 
from WSHA attended the January Safety/EOC meeting. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

The Chartis Group INDEX 
Report (iVantage) 

K. Mellema shared the INDEX report from Fall 2022 and Winter 
2023.  PMH index rank for Fall 2022 was 13.3 and the index rank for 
Winter 2023 is 79.2 which indicated a significant increase in all of 
the pillars except for Outpatient Market Share. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

January 2023 Patient 
Satisfaction Data 

M. Fuller reported that the Top Box score has been added to the 
Patient Loyalty Summary Report. In 2022, we exceeded our goal 
with the YTD (January 2023) is at 92.62%.  The percentage rank 
2022 has been added to the Summary Report as well.  Top box is 
how our satisfaction data is publicly reported as overall favorability.  
The mean is an indicator of what we have done in a month and if it 
has it made an impact.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

2023 Patient Engagement 
Plan 

M. Fuller reported that the guiding principles of the plan are based 
on the Patient and Family Center Care (IPFCC) core concepts:  
Dignity and Respect, Information Sharing, Participation and 
Collaboration.  Initiatives in 2023 will be focused reconnecting with 
our patients and community in the pandemic recovery period.  We 
will continue to ensure timely information informs our patient care 
practice and we are providing education to our community.  These 
initiatives are all included in the 2023 Strategic Plan under Patient 
Loyalty. 

Plan has been 
recommended to the 
Board for review and 
approval. 

Board of 
Commissioners 

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility C. Marks reported that we have had issues with communicating 
with the DOH for about two months.  We were notified recently 
that our project has been handed off to another member of the 
DOH team which is the head of the whole department.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

We are working with the City of Prosser for a development 
agreement to delay any improvements to north Gap Road for the 
next 10 years until significant development occurs out there.  This 
agreement will go before the Board for approval.   
 
WA DOT has a vision to put in a roundabout at the offramp on Gap 
Road.  They want PMH to contribute $55,000 and when they decide 
to put in the roundabout, that $55,000 will be our contribution.   
 
A lot of dirt being moved on the property and the building pad is 
complete. The excavation team is working on putting in temporary 
roads and SVID will start to bury the canal next week which will 
take approximately a month.   
 
A fence will be put up around the site and construction trailers will 
be going in.   
 
Over the next month or two, they will be building a mock exterior 
of the hospital, including windows and materials that will be on the 
hospital.  It gives us an opportunity to explore how the building will 
be put together and test water penetration.   

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Sollers reported that we have had a gap in care at the Prosser 
clinic. Dr. Rivero has started and will boost the Occupational Health 
program.  PMH is actively looking at a family medicine candidate, 
but his residency is not complete until June 2023.  We plan to 
recruit him, and he also was a previous employee of the hospital 
lab.  There has been several ARNP candidates for primary care but 
there is a need for a physician at the Prosser clinic.   
 
The Dermatology clinic is growing and expanding with workstations 
for the MAs, office space and procedure room.   
 
There are changes in the Behavioral Health program.  We do not 
have a nurse practitioner in the Benton City clinic, but we are 
currently recruiting.   
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Dr. Higgs, orthopedic physician, will be starting in May.  There is a 
potential outpatient Internal medicine candidate from tri-cities.  
We are also recruiting another pediatrician for the Prosser clinic.  
Dr. Dingwall is joining us in March.  Dr. Barber is starting May 6th in 
the ED.   
 
Our biggest focus this coming year is supporting our providers 
appropriately.   

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement  C. Marks reported that we did the Super Bowl contest this year with 
400 participants.  Yesterday was Valentine’s Day and we took 
around chocolate and flowers to staff. March Madness is around 
the corner.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

AHA Rural Health 
Governance Conference 

There are four Board members and Craig planning on attending the 
conference which is next week.  There will not be a Board work 
session this month due to the conference. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
January 2023 

C. Marks reported that we had a strong revenue month.  We are 
significantly higher than last January.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Audits C. Marks reported that we are undergoing two audits right now one 
with the state and one with DZA who is doing the financial audit.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0807 

Next scheduled meeting March 22, 2023 

 

K. Mellema  2/15/2023 



 

February 23, 2023 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – February 17, 2023,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – January 23, 2023, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials –January 2023 (Attachment CC)                                                                      David 
                    Action Requested – January 2023 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                         Stephanie 
 
   
             C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 170530 through #171085                         David 
                   Dated 01-18-23 through 02-15-23 in the amount of $6,674,692.70. Surplus Item Resolution # 1076:  
                   (3) Medical Beds, and (1) Pharmacy Balance. 
 
 

       D. Capital Request- ERBE (Attachment K)                                                                                                                 David 
                    Action Requested-ERBE at a cost not to exceed $26,214. 
 
 
              E.  ERP Update-Multiview                                                                                                                                             David                                          
 
        
 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  January 23, 2023                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance  

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Neilan McPartland called the meeting to order at 7:46 
a.m. 

  

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for December 12, 
2022, as presented was made 
by Neilan McPartland.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved.   

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

December 2022 
             (Attachment T) 
              

Net Income of $1,495,119 in December and Gross 
Charges were $24,525,174 which was 33% higher than 
budget for the month and 39% greater than the prior 
year.  Net Operating Revenue came in at $8,796,771 
(18% over budget).   

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the December 
2022 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 

None. 



 

 

 
Expenses were $7,465,463 in December and 8% over 
budget.  Surgeries were 307 vs 191 budget and ER 
visits were 1,636 vs 1,104 budget. 
Cash Flow was ($4,039) for the month and $4,497,795 
YTD.  AR were at a net 56 days overall. 

by Brandon Bowden. The 
motion was seconded by 
Neilan McPartland and 
approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR was at 56 net days overall as Collections were 
$10,060,253 and greater than goal of $8,290,271 and 
greater than prior year total of $7,758,658.  POS 
collections were $26,096 exceeding a budget of 
$15,000 but lower than prior year $27,972.  POS 
collections YTD are $423,089 versus $180,000 budget 
and $227,060 prior year. 

None. None. 

    C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #169603 through #170529 
           Dated 12.08.22 through   
           01.17.23 in the amount of  
         $10,754,384.21. 

 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
approval of the Voucher Lists 
#169603 through #170529 
Dated 12.08.22 through   
 01.17.23 in the amount of  
 $10,754,384.21.            
was made by Neilan 
McPartland, seconded by 
Brandon Bowden, and 
approved.    

None. 

D.   Capital Request- ERCP Scopes 
(Attachment TTT) 

 A motion to recommend 
approval of the Capital 
Request- ERCP Scopes 
was made by Neilan 
McPartland, seconded by 
Brandon Bowden, and 
approved.    

None. 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:53 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   February 2023 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

     It's official, we have made it through the winter weather delays and our construction is 

now moving full speed ahead! This month we have focused on several design issues and are 

gradually shifting our focus to construction, the schedule, and our construction budget. 

Some of the recent activity on the project is contained in the Owner’s Representative 

Monthly Progress Report (Attachment A); minutes from our last (February 7th) 

Owners/Architects/Contractor (OAC) Meeting (Attachment B); a monthly construction 

update from Bouten Construction (Attachment C); a construction schedule from Bouten 

Construction (Attachment D); and a Construction/Project Budget from NV5 (Attachment E). 

There is no financing activity to report in February other than to say that we continue to 

work very closely with the USDA on the review of all payment vouchers for expenses related 

to the project. 

       

A. Design 

     Last month I reported that despite daily attempts to contact the Washington Department 

of Health (DOH) regarding questions they raised about our project, we were unsuccessful. 

We continued to reach out daily this past month and recently learned that our project 

review has been handed over to a new (our third) DOH official. The official is John Williams, 

Executive Director of Construction Review Services at the Washington DOH. Mr. Williams 

has over 25 years of experience with healthcare design and regulation and is the leader of 

this department at the DOH. We look forward to working with Mr. Williams and his 

comments regarding our responses to issues previously identified. We now have a draft 

Development Agreement (Attachment F) with the City of Prosser to defer North Gap Road 

improvements until development in the area occurs (up to 10 years). Once the City 

approves the Agreement, the PMH Board will be asked to approve it, which we hope occurs 

in February. We also continue to wait for the Washington State Department of 



Transportation (WSDOT) to approve our Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) study and 

remediation plan for the intersection of North Gap Road and the I82 westbound on and off-

ramps. We anticipate that WSDOT will require us to contribute approximately $55,000 to 

WSDOT for future improvements (a roundabout) they plan to make at the intersection. We 

will notify the Board when we sign the agreement with WSDOT, which the Board previously 

approved. Last fall we conducted a furniture fair at the hospital allowing PMH staff to see 

and try furniture preliminary selected for our project. Several pieces were not well liked and 

based on this feedback, Open Square (our furniture consultant) has identified several 

possible replacement pieces (Attachment G). We plan to have several of these pieces 

shown again to our staff this fall. Stay tuned for when we will conduct a second Furniture 

Fair. 

 

B. Construction/ Schedule/ Budget 

     In addition to their monthly report, Bouten Construction will also be providing us with bi-

weekly construction updates. The first update (Attachment H) demonstrates the excavation 

progress being made on preparing the building pad, work on temporary roads and trailer 

locations, and the burying of utilities (water, sewer, electric). On February 20, Sunnyside 

Valley Irrigation District (SVID) plans to begin burying the overflow canal and plans to be 

done in approximately four weeks. Next week a security fence will be installed around the 

project to limit traffic on the site and protect the project as it is being constructed. Periodic 

tours of the site will be provided to the Board, staff, and Medical Staff when we reach 

construction milestones and there is something to see. Representatives from Bouten will be 

at the February Board Meeting to update the Board on all construction activities 

(Attachment C); the construction schedule (Attachment D); the deferred alternates and 

value engineering matrix (Attachment I), and the change order proposal log (Attachment J). 

Representatives from NV5 will attend the February Board Meeting virtually and will present 

an updated construction/project budget with current expenditures (Attachment E). Because 

there is not a Board Work Session in February, the replacement project updates will be given 

during the February Board Meeting. 

 

 2. Capital Acquisition-ERBE 

    The ERBE is an electrosurgical machine that uses Argon gas for the management of 
bleeding and polyp removal during GI procedures (Attachment K). It prevents unnecessary 
damage to fragile tissue. Our current ERBE is used essentially every day now that we have 
two Gastroenterologists.  It is connected to our current GI tower that permanently stays in 
the GI Suite. It should not be disconnected and moved from room to room. We are 
requesting another ERBE device because they are also critically important during ERCP’s, 



which are performed in the OR suite.  The second ERBE will connect to our other Olympus 
tower to be used with Dr. McDonnell during ERCPs.  It is important to note that in order to 
perform some procedures, the ERBE is not only essential, but also required. When planning 
for the addition of ERCPs at our facility, the need for an additional unit was not known. As a 
result, it was not included in our 2023 capital budget. It should also be noted that this piece 
of equipment will be used at our new facility. The Board will be asked at the February Board 
Meeting to approve the acquisition of an additional ERBE at a cost not to exceed $26,214.  

      

 

Medical Staff Development 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

        With the approval of the 2023 Medical Staff Recruitment Plan, we are aggressively 

pursuing candidates that will help meet the needs of the community we serve. To support 

this claim, we have successfully recruited six of the eleven providers identified in the plan. 

The remainder of the providers are predominantly in primary care (internal medicine, family 

practice, pediatrics). We are currently virtually interviewing several primary care providers 

and hope to have them visit in the near future. We have also extended contracts to several 

primary care physicians for their review. We are very optimistic about our ability to address 

the unmet primary care needs in the area for the coming years.  

 

2. Medical Staff Leadership 

          2023 is the year of significant Medical Staff leadership changes at Prosser Memorial 

Health. Effective January 1st, 2023, Dr. David Carl became our new Chief of Staff and Dr. Jose 

Santa-Cruz became our new Vice Chief of Staff (Attachment L). I would like to thank Dr. Jared 

Clifford outgoing Chief of Staff, for his outstanding leadership the past two years during some 

very challenging times. Thank you! In addition, we have several new providers assuming 

leadership positions including Dr. Steven Rode-Credentialing Committee Chair; Dr. David 

Barber-Emergency Department Committee Chair; Dr. Heidi Weaver-Perinatal/Pediatric 

Committee Chair; Dr. Coral Tieu-Surgery Committee Chair; and Dr. Suzanne Staudinger-

Community Clinics Community Chair. Please join me in congratulating all of our new Medical 

Staff leaders! I have also included in the Board Packet our most recent pictorial of the PMH 

Medical Staff (Attachment M). What an outstanding group!  

 

 

 



3. Medical Staff Activity 

         A comprehensive list of Medical Staff Committee activities for the fourth quarter of 2022 is 

included in the Board packet for your review (Attachment N). Some of the significant 

activities during the fourth quarter included ongoing internal and external quality chart 

reviews; the review of 33 new appointment and reappointment applications to the PMH 

Medical Staff; the development, and or, revision of numerous clinical policies; and the 

provision of ongoing clinical education. It should be noted that the PMH Medical Staff 

provided outstanding leadership and guidance throughout the busiest year in the history of 

PMH and are to be thanked for their commitment to our patients, staff and PMH. Finally, 

February 3 was National Women's Physicians Day, and we were pleased and proud to 

recognize our great providers (Attachment O). 

 

 

Employee Development 

1. Employee Engagement 

          We began the New Year with several engagement activities. In January, we celebrated 
our tenured employees at the Years of Service Recognition event for our employees 
celebrating five years through thirty-five years of service. We munched on popcorn 
celebrating National Popcorn Day and held multiple sessions of on-site debriefs for the 
results of the Engagement Survey. We also held our Annual Super Bowl Squares Contest, 
which made the game a little more exciting as we watched to see if we would have winning 
numbers.  In total, we had 400 PMH team members participate, which surpassed the 250 
participants last year.  Congratulations to the winners (Attachment P) and thank you to 
everyone that participated.  On February 14, we celebrated Valentine’s Day by distributing 
Valentine’s chocolates and a Carnations to all staff, to help brighten everyone’s day.  As 
spring approaches, it is now time for everyone to start watching college basketball in 
preparation for the PMH March Madness Contest.  Unfortunately, it does not currently look 
like the University of Washington, Washington State or the University of Minnesota will 
make the NCAA Tournament.  Good luck and go Zags!  I have also included our employee 
newsletter, The Pulse, in the Board packet (Attachment Q).  This month’s newsletter 
highlights some of our employees that were recently recognized for their Years of Service in 
addition to our Aspire Award Winners, new providers, etc. 

 

 

 

 



2. Employee Engagement Survey Follow-Up 

                     Follow-up on the results of the 2022 Employee and Provider Engagement surveys are 

well underway. Human Resources, led by Bryon Dirkes, Chief Human Resources Officer, has 

been meeting with Prosser Memorial Health leaders to review and analyze their departmental 

engagement results and help the leader prepare and co-facilitate team-level action planning 

sessions. Following this review, each leader will identify the two to three most important work 

items to focus on and then create a personal action plan. Each team will also create a team 

plan. The goal in creating team action plans is to identify opportunities for team members to 

address the most important items while performing their daily work, not to create “extra” 

things to do.  Once departmental action plans are created, each leader will enter their plans 

into the LEM using the 90-day plan feature and post the team plan on the department ASPIRE 

board. Over the next several months, department leaders will share plan updates with their 

one-up leader and monthly updates to the team and post on their ASPIRE board.  Medical Staff 

meetings will be held at each location (clinics and hospital) to address Medical Staff results.  

Annie Parker, Chief Clinic Operations Officer, will first work with the Medical Directors of each 

location to review and analyze results and then hold provider meetings to discuss the results, 

identify the most important items and then prepare an action plan to address the identified 

opportunities for improvement.  Again, the goal in creating action plans is to identify 

opportunities to address the most important items while performing daily work, coinciding 

with this activity.  Human Resources will be working with leaders to identify best practices in 

employee engagement to support future leadership development opportunities and 

mentoring relationships where leaders with strengths in one or more engagement practices 

can partner with leaders focused on improvement in those areas. In addition, we are working 

with Huron to assist our leaders to demonstrate successful leadership traits everyday 

(Attachment R). 

 
 

3. IAFF Negotiations Update 
 

     Prosser Memorial Health has reached a tentative agreement with International 
Association of Firefighters (I.A.F.F), local I-24. The union represents 21 full-time and part-
time EMTs and Paramedics after six negotiating sessions, the Union and Prosser Memorial 
Health leadership held mediation on January 5 and a second and final session on February 1, 
where a tentative agreement (Attachment S) was reached. The International Association of 
Firefighters union members will be voting on the agreement in the next few days to ratify 
the contract, at which time, the ratified agreement will be brought before the Board for 
approval. If the vote has not occurred before the February Board Meeting, the Board will be 
asked to approve the contract in March. 
 
 



 4. 2022 Incentive Compensation Program 
 
     This past year was challenging as we continued to grapple with the end of the pandemic 
and saw our volumes grow to levels PMH has never experienced. Throughout all of this, the 
PMH team performed well, as illustrated on our Pyramid of Success (Attachment T), where 
we exceeded four of our Pillar Goals for 2022. The current PMH Incentive Compensation 
Program rewards leaders and exempt staff (non-leadership) when PMH performs well, and 
most importantly exceeds budgeted financial expectations (“open the gate”). In 2022, PMH 
exceeded budgeted net income expectations by $5.5 million, with all COVID-19 relief funds 
removed from our income statement (Attachment U). Per policy, up to 50% of the excess 
income ($2.76 million) can be used in the Incentive Compensation Program. Based on the 
overall 2022 hospital LEM score of 3.39 out of five (Attachment V) and the scores of 
individual departments (the average score was 3.64), PMH will pay approximately $388,679 
of incentive compensation to the leaders and exempt (non-leadership) staff in April per 
policy (Attachment W). Congratulations to everyone that earned incentive compensation in 
2022. 

 

5. 2023 Incentive Compensation  

     As I stated last year and I state again, my goal since I arrived at PMH has been to 
implement an Incentive Compensation Program for our entire Team, and I believe that it is 
time to do so. Our success in 2022 was not just because of the efforts of leaders and exempt 
staff, but because of the efforts of everyone.  Recognizing this, I am proposing to the Board 
in February that all staff (excluding providers who already have incentive-based contracts) be 
included in the 2023 PMH Incentive Compensation Program (Attachment X). This Program 
rewards our Team when PMH is successful as measured by our Pillar Goals. The better PMH 
does, the better our Team will do. The Program allows the Leadership Team to earn up to 
15% incentive compensation and all other staff up to 5% incentive compensation each year. 
It should be noted, however, that the only way the Program pays anything is if PMH exceeds 
its budgeted net income or bottom line. This is referred to as “opening the gate”. An 
individual’s score is comprised of 50% from the overall hospital performance LEM score and 
50% based on their specific department’s LEM score. As an example, if this program had 
been in place in 2022, it would have paid approximately $1.35 million in incentive 
compensation to our Team and decreased our net income in 2022 by approximately 
$572,142. In my experience, this program has worked well to reward all staff for their 
contributions to the success of the organization and the organizations using it also thrived. If 
the Board approves the 2023 Incentive Compensation Program, it must be approved by our 
three unions before it can be implemented. If approved by everyone and we have a good 
year, the first incentive compensation checks will go out in April 2024. Since the program 
appears to be very complicated, we will conduct Open Forums to explain it to our entire 
team in the near future. 

 



      It should be noted that for all union staff, this system will not be used to determine their 
annual salary increases. They will continue to use their step system outlined in their 
contracts. Like previous years however, leaders and exempt (non-leadership) staff will use 
this system to calculate their annual pay increase by combining 80% of their LEM score and 
20% of their Performance Appraisal Rating (Attachment Y). This will result in an annual pay 
increase between 0% and 5%, depending upon an individual's performance (Attachment Z). 
Based on previous years, this typically results in an average wage increase between 3.5% and 
4.0% for leaders and exempt (non-leadership) staff. 
 

 

 

6. 2023 Healthcare Workforce Scan 

     One of the most significant outcomes of the pandemic has been the increase in staff 
turnover and the overall shortage of healthcare workers across the country. As a result, the 
American Hospital Association (AHA) recently released a publication that helps define the 
challenge and explore possible solutions (Attachment AA). Fortunately, PMH has been able 
to keep our turnover rate below 10% (8.4% in 2022), which far exceeds national averages. 
However, we must remain vigilant, and we are committed to continuing to enhance our 
engagement efforts throughout our organization. 
 

 
 
Patient Loyalty 
 
1. 2023 Patient Engagement Plan 

 
    The 2023 Patient Engagement Plan is being presented for Board approval this month 

(Attachment BB).  The guiding principles of the Institute of Patient-and-Family-Centered 

Care (IPFCC, 2018) help assess and direct our efforts: Dignity and Respect, Information 

Sharing, Participation, and Collaboration.  We aim to deliver appropriate and timely care in 

partnership with the patient and their support system.  The patient's perception of the care 

they receive is impacted by whether they felt we listened well, communicated in a way they 

could understand, and cared about them as we cared for them. Patient Satisfaction Survey 

results, patient comments, patient complaints, Service Recovery activity, and employee and 

provider feedback are all utilized to assess the successful implementation of our 

initiatives.  We have identified 20initiatives for 2023, with several explicitly focusing on 

patient flow and improving access to care both in the hospital and across the clinics.  The 

2023 Plan is ambitious and comprehensive but will continue to expand as needs or new ideas 

are identified.   

 
 



Financial Stewardship 
 
1. Financial Performance- January 
 

     The best way to start the new year for any business is by having a strong financial 

performance in the first month of the year and I am pleased to report that PMH had a great 

start in January (Attachment CC). Most of our patient volumes exceeded budget and prior 

year, and as a result, our gross revenue set a new monthly record ($25.5 million) exceeded 

budget by $3.0 million and exceeded last January by $8.5 million. It should be noted, 

however, that last January/February our Governor did restrict our ability to do routine 

outpatient surgeries, which negatively impacted our gross revenue. Our contractual 

allowances and deductions from revenue were in line with our increased revenue resulting in 

a net revenue of $9.46 million or 18% better than budget. Our operating expenses were 6% 

over budget, but understandable based on our increased volumes/revenue. This resulted in a 

very strong operating income of $1.2 million for January compared to our budgeted net 

income of $266,237. After adding in our non-operating income, our total net income was 

$1.28 million for a total margin of 13.5%. Outstanding! These results exceeded budget 

expectations as well as January 2022. It is a great way to start a new year. There is nothing to 

report regarding our year-to-date performance as it is the same as our January performance. 

In addition, we experienced a positive cash flow of $552,488 in January despite significant 

investments in our replacement facility project. As a result, our balance sheet remains strong 

with over $35 million in cash/investments, which positions us well as we begin a new year. 

 
     

 
 
2. Audits 
          

          We are currently in the process of having two audits completed at PMH. The first is our 

annual State of Washington Accountability Audits which focuses on accounts payable, 

payroll, accounts receivable, cash receipting, IT security, etc. as they relate to following 

applicable state laws and regulations, to ensure that we provide adequate controls over the 

safeguarding of public resources. This audit is wrapping up and the exit conference will be 

held on February 22 or 23. The second audit is our financial audit, which is being conducted 

by Dingus, Zarecor and Associates (DZA). DZA is currently progressing on the audit (remotely) 

and plan to present their findings to the Board at the March Board Work Session. 

 

 

 



3. PMH Foundation Update 
           Planning is underway for Bottles, Brews, Barbecues June 9 & 10th! The event steering 

committee, as well as subcommittees, are meeting regularly to divide up the ideas and the 

tasks to be done to ensure we have another great event! Early bird ticket sales will go live on 

the Foundation's website: https://www.prosserhealth.foundation. Shannon is working 

directly with the Foundation Board of Directors to identify capital campaign donors and 

schedule meetings to go over the project and our campaign goals. 

            We are now accepting applications for the Auxiliary Scholarship Fund. These are 

available for seniors in Prosser, Grandview, and the Kiona-Benton School Districts who are 

interested in pursuing degrees in healthcare. The application can be found on our foundation 

website: https://www.prosserhealth.foundation. This month the Foundation will ask the 

Board of Commissioners to approve Lori Gardner joining the Foundation Board. Lori and her 

husband Chris live in Sunnyside and are very active in the community. Lori also owns French 

Vanilla Market and has been our gift shop vendor for almost two years. The Foundation 

Board will ask the Board of Commissioners to approve the updated Operating Agreement 

between the Hospital and the Foundation (Attachment DD). The State Auditors have 

requested this document be updated as it has been four years since we last reviewed it. 

 

 

QUALITY 
 
1. Chartis (iVantage)2023 Performance Summary 
      

          The Chartis Group (aka iVantage) publishes the Top 100 Critical Access Hospital list 

every year.  We have contracted with The Chartis Group for the last three years to help drive 

our own improvement by utilizing their benchmarks from the Top 100 Hospitals.  The INDEX 

reports are published three times a year, Fall, Winter, and Spring.  Our last report from 2022 

was received December 9 which showed that our Index Rank was 13.3 out of a 100 

(Attachment EE).  Our highest Index Rank so far has been 27.6 in the Fall of 2021.  It’s 

important to note that the data that is used to create these reports comes from publicly 

reported data to CMS and is anywhere from one to two years old.  With that being said, I am 

happy to report that we received our Winter 2023 Index report this week (Attachment FF) 

and our Index Rank is 79.2!!!!!  This is finally a data driven representation of the hard work 

that has been going on throughout our organization.  There was a huge increase in our 

Finance Pillar from 29 in Fall 2022 to 81 in Winter 2023; Inpatient Market Share went from 33 

to 53; just to name a few. Our most recent ranking of 79.2 puts us in the top quartile of all 

Critical Access Hospitals in the Country. We have made huge gains and it’s all thanks to the 

leadership of our organization, providers, and staff!  They go above and beyond every day to 



deliver excellent care to our patients and it’s great to see that hard work being reflected in 

this report.  Job well done!!! 

 
 

 

2. 2023 Board Action Plan 
 
          In December, the Board completed a self-evaluation, which was discussed at the January 

Board Meeting. Based on the discussion, I drafted a 2023 Board Action Plan to address the 

greatest opportunities for improvement identified during the evaluation process 

(Attachment GG). These opportunities include Board education; continuing to build and 

maintain strong relationships with our Medical Staff and Leadership Team; etc. The Board 

will be asked to review the Plan and approve it at the February Board Meeting. 

 
        

 
 
3. COVID-19 Update 
 
         It has been a long time since I have written about the COVID-19 pandemic, but the Biden 

Administration recently informed Congress that it will end the COVID-19 National and Public 
Health Emergencies (PHE) on May 11, 2023. This signals an end to the pandemic crisis era 
and an unwinding of federal flexibilities that reshaped the nation's healthcare system. In 
response, the American Hospital Association (AHA) did two things. First, they developed a 
Special Bulletin (Attachment HH) which outlines several changes that may affect hospital 
operations and key dates for when certain waivers will expire (Attachment HH). Second, 
they sent a letter to the Department of Health and Human Services Secretary Xavier Becerra 
urging the department to take several actions to stabilize the healthcare delivery system, 
support the healthcare workforce, and remove unnecessary administrative and regulatory 
burdens (Attachment II). We do not believe that the ending of the PHE will have any 
material effect on PMH, and we anxiously await our Governor's response, which may have 
more of an impact on us (e.g., the requirement to wear masks in all hospitals in the State of 
Washington). Stay tuned…. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4. Board Education 
 
           A priority for our Board, as indicated in the 2023 Board Action Plan, is the ongoing 

education of our Commissioners. To that end, we will attempt to notify the Board of 
conferences they may want to attend. Next week four commissioners and I will attend the 
36th Annual AHA Rural Healthcare Leadership Conference in San Antonio. Additional 
upcoming conferences include: the 2023 AHA Annual Membership Meeting in Washington 
D.C.- April 23-25 (Attachment JJ); and the Washington Rural Hospital Leadership Conference 
in Lake Chelan-June 27-28 (Attachment KK). If you are interested in attending these 
conferences, please contact Rosemary (786-6651). 

 
 

 

5. AHA 2022 National Healthcare Governance Report 

     American Hospital Association (AHA) has periodically surveyed the nation’s hospitals and 

health systems since 2005 to get a picture of how they are governed (Attachment LL). This 

picture looks at nine areas that the AHA deems significant ranging from diversity to 

selection. In total 933 hospitals participated in the survey including PMH. This Report is only 

being presented for information. 

 

6. February Board Meeting 
 
           A reminder that we do not have a Board Work Session in February, only the regular Board 

Meeting on February 23. At the Board Meeting the Board will receive an update on our 
replacement facility project that will address design, construction, schedule, and budget 
topics. The Board will be asked to approve: a Development Agreement with the City of 
Prosser; the acquisition of an ERBE at a cost not to exceed $26,214; a new PMH Foundation 
Board Member- Lori Gardner; a PMH Foundation Operating Agreement; the 2023 Patient 
Engagement Plan; a 2023 PMH Incentive Compensation Program; the IAFF Contract; and the 
2023 Board Action Plan. The Board will also go into Executive Session and is expected to take 
action after the session. 

      
           
 

 

          

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact 

me at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G

























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q







































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R





















































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Z



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA

















































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment DD



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment EE





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment FF



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment GG







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment HH











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment II

































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment JJ



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment KK



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment LL






























































































































































































	Cover Sheet
	02.23.23 Board Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2023
	Strategic Plan Scorecard
	2023 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD
	02.01.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	01.26.23 Board Minutes
	2.15.23 JCC Minutes
	02-17-23 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	01.23.23 Finance Committee Minutes
	February 2023 Ceo Memo updated
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment Z
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Attachment DD
	Attachment EE
	Attachment FF
	Attachment GG
	Attachment HH
	Attachment II
	Attachment JJ
	Attachment KK
	Attachment LL
	Attachment MM
	Attachment NN



